
         

 

 

WINDING CYPRESS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

DECEMBER 4, 2025 
1:00 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.windingcypresscdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

 WINDING CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Clubhouse at Winding Cypress 
7180 Winding Cypress Drive 

Naples, Florida 34114 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

December 4, 2025 
1:00 p.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication..................................................................................................................................Page 1 

D. Establish a Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. November 6, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes………………………………………………Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Bond Length……………………………………………………………….Page 6 

2. Discussion Regarding Community Connecting to District Lake Drains…………………………..Page 10 

3. Discussion Regarding Advertising………………………………………………………………...Page 11 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

 Financials………………………………………………………………………………………Page 16 

2. Attorney’s Report 

J. Comments from the Public 

K. Board Member Comments 

L. Adjourn 

 



Publication Date

2025-11-26

Subcategory

Miscellaneous Notices

NOTICE OF BOARD MEETING OF THEWINDING CYPRESS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The Board of Supervisors of the Winding Cypress Community Development District (the District) will hold a

Board Meeting on December 4, 2025, at 1:00 p.m. at the Clubhouse at Winding Cypress located at 7180

Winding Cypress Drive, Naples, Florida 34114.

The Board Meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida

law for community development districts. The Board Meeting may be continued in progress without additional

notice to a time, date, and location stated on the record. A copy of the agenda for the Board Meeting may be

obtained from the Districts website or from the District Manager, Special District Services, located at 2501A

Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will

participate by telephone.

Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations

to participate in this Board Meeting is asked to advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before

the meeting by contacting the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922. If you

are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-8770, who can aid you

in contacting the District Office.

A person who decides to appeal any decision made at this Board Meeting with respect to any matter

considered at the Board Meeting is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings and that

accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made including the

testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice.

WINDING CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

www.windingcypresscdd.org

No.11857927 Nov. 26, 2025



Page 1 of 4 
 

WINDING CYPRESS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
NOVEMBER 6, 2025 

 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The November 6, 2025, Regular Board Meeting of the Winding Cypress Community Development District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 1:01 p.m. at the Clubhouse at Winding Cypress located at 7180 
Winding Cypress Drive, Naples, Florida 34114. 
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that the November 6, 2025, Regular Board Meeting had been published 
in the Naples Daily News on October 22, 2025, as legally required. 
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order 
to proceed with the Workshop: 
 
Chairperson Barbara Powell Present 
Vice Chairman Alex Petrovsky Present 
Supervisor Gerard O’Donohue Present 
Supervisor Patrick Cirello Present 
Supervisor Susan Broucek Present 

 
Also present were the following Staff members: 
 
District Manager Michelle Krizen Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Alyssa Willson (via phone) Kutak Rock 
District Engineer Ted Tryka Agnoli Barber & Brundage, Inc. 

 
District Manager, Kathleen Meneely of Special District Services, Inc. was also in attendance until 1:35 p.m. 
 
Also present were those on the attached sign-in sheet. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  August 7, 2025, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting 
 

Page 2



Page 2 of 4 
 

A motion was made by Supervisor Ciriello, seconded by Supervisor Petrovsky and passed unanimously 
approving the minutes of the August 7, 2025, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
 2.  October 2, 2025, Workshop 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Ciriello, seconded by Supervisor Broucek and passed unanimously 
approving the minutes of the October 2, 2025, Workshop, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
There was a consensus of the Board to change the order of  the items listed under New Business to discuss 
the current project and then the funding options.  
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
    
Mr. Tryka presented his overview, focusing on six lakes for remediation. The lakes would be bid on a lake 
by lake basis allowing the District to maximize the work that can be completed. The Board anticipated to 
select the contractor at the February meeting, with work beginning in March or April.  
 
Mr. Tryka reported that the pickleball conversion review had led to the discovery of plans indicating a 
drainage system in the area.  Upon initial inspection, the drains are not visible.  Were they not put in or 
were they covered over?  Ideally the HOA would partner with us or have their landscapers look for the 
system. This would involve light digging or probing.  
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Powell, seconded by Supervisor Petrovsky and passed unanimously 
authorizing staff to correspond with the HOA to investigate the drainage system. 
 
A motion was made by Supervisor Petrovsky, seconded by Supervisor Broucek and passed unanimously 
directing staff to work with the District Engineer to finalize specs and distribute for bids for the Lake 
Remediation 2026 Project with a due date in January for Board consideration at the February meeting.  
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Lake Bank Funding 
 
This discussion can be summarized into one question: Is this a capital project that should have the cost 
spread over time or from Operating funds on an annual basis? The current amount of the budget being paid 
into O&M is $509.48 -$652.74.  If the Board were to pursue 20 year bonds, the cost would decrease to $315 
- $385 per home; a 30 year bond would decrease these costs further.  The 30 year breakdown will be 
available for review at the next meeting.  
 
A motion was made by Supervisor  O’Donohue, seconded by Supervisor Powell and passed unanimously 
authorizing staff to pursue bond issuance to coincide with the budget process.  
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2025-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Amended Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2025-05 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-05 
 

Page 3



Page 3 of 4 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WINDING 
CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 
ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET 
(“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Supervisor Ciriello, seconded by Supervisor Petrovsky and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution No. 2025-05, as presented. 
 
 4.  Consider Resolution No. 2025-06 – Goals and Objectives Annual Report 
 
Resolution No. 2025-06 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  2025-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WINDING 
CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING AN 
ANNUAL REPORT OF GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND PERFORMANCE 
MEASURES AND STANDARDS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Supervisor Powell, seconded by Supervisor Petrovsky and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution No. 2025-06, as presented. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Manager’s Report 
 
Ms. Krizen noted that the next meeting was scheduled for December 4, 2025. 
 
 2.  Attorney’s Report 
 
Ms. Willson reminded the Board that their 4 hours of ethics training was due by December 31, 2025. 
 
J. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Kasia Zadykowicz thanked the Board for their work. She spoke of her concern for the drainage on the HOA 
property and wanted to ensure that the pickleball project would not harm the lake banks.  
 
Marco Arilli asked about water volume studies and did the permeability of the hard service change of a 
pickleball court change versus the clay of a tennis court.  
 
Kathy Avallone spoke regarding the littoral plants and the benefits they have for the lake banks and water 
quality.  
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Page 4



Page 4 of 4 
 

There being no further business to address, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned at 2:46 p.m. on a 
motion made by Supervisor Powell, seconded by Supervisor Petrovsky and passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
Chairperson/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Date Approved   
 

Page 5



30 year bond vs 20 year bank loan

November 11, 2025

Presentation to: 
Winding Cypress CDD

Page 6



2

Disclosure

FMS ROLE AS UNDERWRITER AND NOT FINANCIAL ADVISOR

FMSbonds, Inc., is providing the information contained in this document for discussion purposes 
only in anticipation of serving as underwriter. The primary role of FMSbonds, Inc., (“FMS”) as an 
underwriter, is to purchase securities with a view to distribute in an arm’s-length commercial 
transaction with the CDD. FMS may have financial and other interests that differ from those of the 
CDD. FMS is not acting as a municipal advisor, financial advisor or fiduciary to the CDD or any 
other person or entity. The information provided is not intended to be and should not be 
construed as “advice” within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
The CDD should consult with its own financial and/or municipal, legal, accounting, tax and other 
advisors, as applicable, to the extent it deems appropriate. Securities offered by FMSbonds, Inc, 
including annuities, are not insured by the FDIC or any government agency; are not deposits or 
other obligations of or guaranteed by FMSbonds, Inc. or any of its affiliates; and are subject to 
investment risks, including possible loss of the principal invested. FMSbonds, Inc. is a 
broker/dealer, member FINRA/SIPC.  FMS has a policy that is designed to comply with the 
disclosure requirements under revised MSRB Rule G-23.  In conjunction with these requirements, 
we are providing the following disclosure to all of our municipal underwriting clients.

Page 7



3

Financing Plan
30 Year Bond Issuance

Bond Assumption

Proposed Loan Amount $3,440,000
Total Bond Payment $232,783
Capitalized Interest Term (months) 12 *thru 11/1/26
Estimated Interest Rate* 5.35%  
Term (years) 30

Less:
Capitalized Interest $184,040 *interest payments must be set aside for 1 year until placed on the tax roll.
Cost of Issuance $255,960

Net Bond Proceeds $3,000,000

Assessment Allocation
2015 Assessment 2019 Assessment Proposed Assessment Total Assessment

Product # of Units Per Home** Per Home*** Per Home Per Home

Villa 152 $785 $0 $272 $1,057
Single-Family 50' 270 $883 $0 $302 $1,185
Single-Family 65' 132 $980 $0 $332 $1,312
Single-Family 50' 136 $0 $1,322 $302 $1,624
Single-Family 65' 76 $0 $1,428 $332 $1,760

Total 766

* Estimated rate, subject to change until final pricing.
** The 2015 Bonds mature in November 1, 2045, at which point only the proposed bond assessments will be due each year.
** The 2019 Bonds mature in November 1, 2049, at which point only the proposed bond assessments will be due each year.

Page 8



4

Financing Plan
20 Year Bank Loan

Page 9



DISCUSSION REGARDING COMMUNITY 
CONNECTING TO DISTRICT LAKE DRAINS 

 
TO BE DISTRIBUTED 

UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 10



Kutak Rock LLP - Tallahassee 
107 W. College Ave., Tallahassee, FL 32301

MEMORANDUM

RE:

FROM:

LEGAL NOTICES VIA PUBLICLY ACCESSIBLE WEBSITE

KUTAK ROCK LLP

DATE: JULY 20, 2022

HB 7049 passed during the regular 2022 legislative session and was signed by the Governor
(codified in Chapter 2022-103, Laws of Florida). The bulk of these changes are in Chapter 50, 
Florida Statutes, including section 50.011, F.S. The changes require that notices that fall under 
the broad section of public notice publication requirements be reviewed for the updated
requirements and options. Among these, the new section 50.0311, F.S., allows for notices to 
publish on a “publicly accessible website” as an alternative to a publication in print newspaper.  
The full text of section 50.0311, F.S. is enclosed as Exhibit A. Below applies a summary of the 
key provisions of this new option to noticing procedures for special districts. For specific 
questions, please consult your Kutak attorney.

Effective Date:  The law takes effect January 1, 2023.

Which websites qualify as a publicly accessible website? Publicly accessible website means 
either:

County’s official website; or
Other private website designated by the county for the publication of legal notices 

Note that not all websites (including some general publications’ websites) will qualify as a publicly 
accessible website.  It is important to note that there is currently no uniform guidance on how a 
special district may obtain access to a county’s official website or confirm which private websites 
have been designated by the counties for the publication of legal notices.  Thus, viability for 
publishing legal notices on a website should be assessed on a district to district, county to county 
basis as different jurisdictions start to get familiar with this new option. It is also possible that 
each counties will adopt its own rules, policies or procedures to address some of these outstanding 
questions prior to the date the law takes effect.

What types of notices can be published on a website? Publication of notices via publicly 
accessible websites is available for most legally required notices including, but not limited to:

Establishment hearing notices pursuant to amended section 190.001(1)(d), F.S.
Budget and assessment hearing notices pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, F.S.
District board of supervisors’ meeting notices
Rulemaking notices pursuant to Chapter 120
Request for Proposals/bid notices

Page 11



2

Which districts can publish on a website? All special districts intending to publish legal notices 
on a publicly accessible website must first determine the following:

Cost of publishing on a website must be less than the cost to publish in a newspaper
Notices must be published in a publicly accessible website in each county within which 
the district boundaries are located
If a district is located in a county with a population of less than 160,000 persons, it must 
first hold a public hearing to determine that its residents have sufficient access to the 
internet by broadband service and publishing on a website will not unreasonably restrict 
public access (note – for a district spanning two counties, the 160,000 population test will 
be applied to the county with at least 75% of the district’s population)

As reported by the 2020 U.S. Census, approximately half of Florida counties have a population of 
less than 160,000.  Thus, it is important for district managers to confirm the current county 
population for each district. 

If a district is publishing notices on a website, are there additional requirements?
Form of Notice – In addition to the specific legal requirements of a particular notice, 
website notices must be in a searchable form and include the date of the publication.
Additional Notice & Registry of Recipients – If a district uses a publicly accessible 
website, the district must also give notice in a newspaper at least annually that property 
owners and residents may receive legal notices from the district by first class mail or email 
upon registering with the district. The district must maintain a registry of such requests. 
Notice of Bidding - If a publicly available website is used for notice of bidding, bids must 
be able to be submitted electronically. 
District Website - If a district publishes legal notices on a publicly accessible website, a 
link to legal notices must be conspicuously placed on the district’s website homepage (in 
addition to a link on the publicly accessible website’s homepage).

Are there other changes from this legislation affecting a district’s noticing procedures if the 
district is still publishing in a newspaper?

The criteria for which newspapers can be used for print publication generally reverts back 
to pre-2021 requirements. If a district changed the newspaper where it printed notices, 
district managers should review the new criteria to be sure the newspaper of choice is still 
eligible.
The statutory form affidavit for proof of publication was also revised.

What now?
First, evaluate what notices are currently published by the district and in what places. Determine 
costs and whether the current newspaper is still eligible for such notices.

Page 12



3

Second, confirm with the applicable county to ascertain whether its website will meet the criteria 
for publication and what arrangements it will have for notices from other jurisdictions, including 
costs or charges.

Third, don’t forget that in a county with population of less than 160,000, the district has to 
determine internet accessibility of residents.

Fourth, don’t be surprised if in the 2023 session, this law is again the subject of discussion and 
debate!

Page 13



4

EXHIBIT A

50.0311 Publication of advertisements and public notices on a publicly accessible website and 
governmental access channels.—

(1) For purposes of this chapter, the term “governmental agency” means a county, municipality, 
school board, or other unit of local government or political subdivision in this state.

(2) For purposes of notices and advertisements required under s. 50.011, the term “publicly 
accessible website” means a county’s official website or other private website designated by the 
county for the publication of legal notices and advertisements that is accessible via the Internet. 
All advertisements and public notices published on a website as provided in this chapter must be 
in searchable form and indicate the date on which the advertisement or public notice was first 
published on the website.

(3) A governmental agency may use the publicly accessible website of the county in which it lies 
to publish legally required advertisements and public notices if the cost of publishing 
advertisements and public notices on such website is less than the cost of publishing 
advertisements and public notices in a newspaper.

(4) A governmental agency with at least 75 percent of its population located within a county with 
a population of fewer than 160,000 may use a publicly accessible website to publish legally 
required advertisements and public notices only if the governing body of the governmental agency, 
at a public hearing that has been noticed in a newspaper as provided in this chapter, determines 
that the residents of the governmental agency have sufficient access to the Internet by broadband 
service, as defined in s. 364.02, or by any other means, such that publishing advertisements and 
public notices on a publicly accessible website will not unreasonably restrict public access.

(5) A special district spanning the geographic boundaries of more than one county that satisfies 
the criteria for publishing and chooses to publish legally required advertisements and public 
notices on a publicly accessible website must publish such advertisements and public notices on 
the publicly accessible website of each county it spans. For purposes of this subsection, the term 
“special district” has the same meaning as in s. 189.012. 

(6) A governmental agency that uses a publicly accessible website to publish legally required 
advertisements and public notices shall provide notice at least once per year in a newspaper of 
general circulation or another publication that is mailed or delivered to all residents and property 
owners throughout the government’s jurisdiction, indicating that property owners and residents 
may receive legally required advertisements and public notices from the governmental agency by 
first-class mail or e-mail upon registering their name and address or e-mail address with the 
governmental agency. The governmental agency shall maintain a registry of names, addresses, and 
e-mail addresses of property owners and residents who have requested in writing that they receive
legally required advertisements and public notices from the governmental agency by first-class 
mail or e-mail.

Page 14



5

(7) A link to advertisements and public notices published on a publicly accessible website shall be 
conspicuously placed:

(a) On the website’s homepage or on a page accessible through a direct link from the homepage.

(b) On the homepage of the website of each governmental agency publishing notices on the 
publicly accessible website or on a page accessible through a direct link from the homepage.

(8) A governmental agency that has a governmental access channel authorized under s. 610.109 
may also include on its governmental access channel a summary of all advertisements and public 
notices that are published on a publicly accessible website.

(9) A public bid advertisement made by a governmental agency on a publicly accessible website 
must include a method to accept electronic bids.

Effective January 1, 2023

Page 15



 Winding Cypress
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
October 2025

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20


	Winding Cypress Community Development District - December 4, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	November 6, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Discussion Regarding Bond Length
	Discussion Regarding Community Connecting to District Lake Drains
	Discussion Regarding Advertising
	Financials




